
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
CONTINUUM OF CARE REGIONAL COMMITTEE ON HOMELESSNESS 

MARCH 22, 2010 MEETING MINUTES 
 

MEMBERS ATTENDING: 
Shana Ellis, City of Tempe, Vice Mayor, Chair 
Robert Duvall for Roberto Armijo, Community 
Information & Referral Services 
Maria-Elena Ochoa for David Barnhouse, 
Governor’s Office 
*Kathryn Brown, AZ Dept of Corrections   
*Kendra Cea, APS 
Gilbert Lopez for Steve Frate, City of 
Glendale, Councilmember 
Victor Hudenko, Catholic Charities 
Theresa James, City of Tempe  
*Michael Johnson, City of Phoenix, 
Councilmember 
Tim Cole for Deanna Jonovich, City of 
Phoenix    
*Don Keuth, Phoenix Community Alliance 
Stephanie Knox, Magellan Health Services of 
Arizona 
Mattie Lord, Arizona Department of Economic 
Security/CPIP 
Mark Ludwig, Arizona Department of Housing 
Nick Margiotta, Phoenix Police Department 
Michael McQuaid, Human Services Campus 
Linda Mushkatel, Maricopa County 
Darlene Newsom, UMOM New Day Centers  
+Joanne Osborne, City of Goodyear, 
Councilmember, Vice Chair 
Gina Ramos-Montes, City of Avondale 
Brenda Robbins, Arizona Dept of Health 
Services 
Amy Schwabenlender, Valley of the Sun 
United Way 
Laura Skotnicki, Save the Family 
Jacki Taylor, Arizona Coalition to End 
Homelessness   

 
*Margaret Trujillo, MG Trujillo Associates 
*Mary Rose Wilcox, Maricopa County, 
Supervisor 
*Ted Williams, Arizona Behavioral Health 
Corporation 
Margot Cordova for Diana Yazzie Devine, 
Native American Connections 

 
OTHERS PRESENT 

Lidia Arrazola, Valle Del Sol, Inc. 
Chris Bartz, Recovery Innovations of Arizona 
Mike Bell, St. Vincent De Paul 
Donna Bleyle, U.S. Vets 
Brad Bridwell, Arizona Department of 
Veterans’ Services 
Jennifer Day, Basic Mission 
Debbie Driscol, Town of Buckeye 
Andy Hall, Department of Economic Security 
Devin Hearns, U.S. Vets 
Katie Hobbs, Sojourner Center 
Tom Manos, Maricopa County Industrial 
Development Authority 
Donnie O’Connell, Chicanos Por La Causa 
+Amy Sue Seiser, ChildHelp the Bridge 
Michael Shore, HOM, Inc. 
Nicky Stevens, Arizona Behavioral health 
Corporation  
Keith Thompson, Phoenix Shanti 
 
Rachel Brito, MAG 
Brande Mead, MAG 
Amy St. Peter, MAG 
 
*Those members neither present nor 
represented by proxy.  
+Those members present by audio or 
videoconference. 



1. Call to Order and Introductions 
Chair Shana Ellis, City of Tempe, called the meeting to order at 2:07 p.m.  Introductions 
ensued.        
 

2. Call to the Audience 
Audience members were given an opportunity to address the Committee.  No comments were 
made.    
 

3. Approval of the December 14, 2009 Continuum of Care Regional Committee on 
Homelessness Meeting Minutes 
Chair Ellis asked for changes or comments to the December 14, 2009, meeting minutes.  A 
motion was made by Jacki Taylor, Arizona Coalition to End Homelessness, to approve the 
minutes.  The motion was seconded by Robert Duvall, Community Information and Referral 
Services.  The minutes were approved.   
 

4. MAG Shelter Capacity Study Report 
Chair Ellis introduced Amy St. Peter, MAG, to present the findings of the MAG Shelter 
Capacity Study Report.  Ms. St. Peter thanked Chair Ellis, the Committee, and shelter 
personnel for their assistance and support with the Shelter Capacity Study.  The study is a 
joint project of the Regional Domestic Violence Council and the Continuum of Care 
Regional Committee on Homelessness.  In 2005, the Regional Domestic Violence Council 
researched the shelter capacity for housing victims of domestic violence.  The study 
determined 325 additional shelter beds were needed so that no one would be turned away. 
The information was used to advocate for additional shelter beds and as a result, 319 beds 
were added.    
 
The Shelter Capacity Study updates the 2005 report and included both domestic violence as 
well as homeless shelters in the study. It researched reasons why people were turned away 
from shelter, how often they were turned away, and ways to enhance the current work being 
done to better serve clients.  Ms. St. Peter expressed appreciation for the 18 shelters that 
participated in the study at a time when more people are in need and funding is limited.  
Ms. St. Peter reported seven out of 16 emergency homeless shelters (44 percent of shelters 
and 42 percent of emergency homeless beds) and eleven out of 14 domestic violence 
emergency shelters (78 percent of shelters and 68 percent of beds) participated in the study.  
Due to the levels of participation, results represent only a sampling of shelters.  The study 
was conducted over two two-week periods in June and July 2009.   

 
Ms. St. Peter said when looking at shelters that denied calls based on no vacancy, homeless 
shelters denied calls almost nine out of ten times.  Domestic violence shelters denied calls 
half of the time for reasons related to vacancy.  On average, calls were denied two-thirds of 
the time overall.  She said the reasons for denials besides vacancy include shelter policy and 
client eligibility.  Six recommendations were made within two strategies: to increase the 
number of people sheltered; and to increase the diversity of people sheltered.  A number of 
the recommendations apply to homeless shelters while others apply to domestic violence 
shelters. Ms. St. Peter advised the study has been reviewed by the Regional Domestic 



Violence Council.  Recommendations made by the Council to further clarify the study have 
been included.  She offered the study for comment and action by the Committee.   
 
Victor Hudenko, Catholic Charities Community Services, asked for clarification on the 
reason used by domestic violence shelters for denial noted as “other”.  Ms. St. Peter referred 
to page six of the study noting “other” was cited 103 times; of which 87 of those were 
reported by one shelter.   The shelter is now researching how the screening was used and 
reasons reported as “other”.  They have also offered to re-conduct the screening.    
 
Ms. St. Peter reported Domestic Violence shelters have begun implementing results from the 
study by requesting technical assistance and training.  She stressed the purpose for the study 
is to enhance the positive work being done by the region’s shelters. 
 
Chair Ellis asked for additional questions or comments from the audience.  Having no further 
input, she asked for a motion to approve the MAG Shelter Capacity Study Report. Laura 
Skotnicki, Save the Family, made a motion to approve the study.  Gilbert Lopez, City of 
Glendale, seconded the motion.  The motion passed.  
 

5. FY 2011 Goal Planning 
Chair Ellis referred Committee members to the handout on the MAG FY 2011 Unified 
Planning Work Program.  She invited Brande Mead, MAG, to discuss the goals outlined in 
the work program.  Ms. Mead referred the Committee to the handout on the goals.  She said 
the FY 2011 objectives for the MAG Unified Planning Work Program and Annual Budget 
are slated for action by the Committee and will be submitted to the MAG Regional Council 
for action.   
 
Ms. Mead provided a brief overview of the FY 2011 outcome measures.  She noted the 
second item “Coordinate services to meet the transportation needs of people experiencing 
homelessness…” is a new item for the Continuum of Care and will be discussed further 
under a separate agenda item.  Under Regional Community Partners, Ms. Mead noted the 
Annual Appreciation Luncheon, sponsored by the Stardust Foundation, is in its final year of 
funding.  It is unknown at this time if additional funding will be secured for the annual event.   
 
Chair Ellis asked for questions or comments from the Committee. Margot Cordova, Native 
American Connections, Inc., asked for information regarding the timeframe for the Homeless 
Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH) Act.  Ms. Mead advised 
HEARTH Act activities fall under the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) activities.  Regulations are expected to be released this summer with implementation 
during the next HUD consolidated application process.  Mark Ludwig, Arizona Department 
of Housing, said information he received indicates HEARTH Act changes will be 
implemented in two years as opposed to the next application cycle.  Chair Ellis asked for a 
motion to recommend approval of the MAG FY 2011 Unified Planning Work Program.  
Theresa James, City of Tempe, made a motion to recommend approval of the work program.  
Mr. Duvall seconded the motion.  The motion passed.   
   

6. Homeless and Domestic Violence Transportation Project 



Chair Ellis invited Ms. St. Peter to discuss plans for a new project to evaluate transportation 
needs of clients residing in homeless and domestic violence shelters.  Ms. St. Peter said as a 
result of the joint collaborative work between the Regional Domestic Violence Council and 
the Continuum of Care Regional Committee on Homelessness, one of the main areas of 
concentration identified by both Committees is transportation.  Transportation can be a 
barrier to accessing shelter and services as well as self sufficiency and stability.   
 
Ms. St. Peter informed the Committee MAG has secured an intern from the Arizona State 
University C.A.R.E. program to assist with the project.  The purpose for discussion is to 
gather input and clarity on how the project should proceed.  Ms. St. Peter asked for input on 
whether the project should focus on transportation needs for people in emergency shelter, 
transitional housing, or both.  Nick Margiotta, Phoenix Police Department, asked for 
clarification of transportation services.  Ms. St. Peter said transportation services include 
fixed routes in terms of the bus system, demand response such as dial-a-ride, and alternative 
methods such as bikes.  She referenced the Purple Bike program previously offered by 
Maricopa County as an example.  Ms. St. Peter asked, with regard to existing resources, what 
solutions or strategies can be developed to further help clients.  
 
Darlene Newsome, United Methodist Outreach Ministries (UMOM) New Day Center, said 
UMOM observes transportation needs for families in transitional and emergency housing 
situations.  She said there has been a change in clients’ needs related to transitional housing 
as individuals are not employed like they used to be.  Ms. Newsome said UMOM has a need 
for bus passes to be provided for clients.   Mr. Margiotta commented on the differences in 
transitional versus homeless crisis situations.  He indicated that people in crisis have very 
different needs than people in transitional housing programs.   Mr. Lopez said transportation 
that removes someone from a dire life threatening situation needs to be a top priority.  
Brenda Robbins, Arizona Department of Health Services, expressed agreement.   Ms. St. 
Peter said based on Committee input, the request is to look at transportation needs for 
emergency shelter and transitional housing clients.  
  
Ms. St. Peter asked for input on focusing on families vs. individuals.  She said the focus 
would also depend on which agencies volunteer to participate in the project.  Ms. Skotnicki 
suggested a need to focus on both families and individuals.  She said Save the Family has an 
increased need for bus passes for families and youth and is unable to keep up with the 
requests due to demand and cost.  Ms. St. Peter asked for feedback on the effects of recent 
transit cuts.  She noted the lottery fund which supported transportation options for cities and 
towns is also being eliminated which will further affect clients.  Mike McQuaid, Human 
Services Campus, recommended both families and individuals be addressed in the study 
because the two groups would likely have different needs.   Ms. Robbins advised the Arizona 
Department of Health Services (DHS) has also lost state funds eliminated by the legislature.  
Ms. Skotnicki said reduced summer hours for transit in the East Valley will limit the number 
of bus routes offered.  Chair Ellis advised Tempe transit routes will also be adjusted as of 
July 1, 2010.  
 
Ms. St. Peter asked for volunteers to participate in focus groups, noting the study may also be 
supplemented with surveys.  She suggested focus groups with case managers and clients 



tagging on to already scheduled meetings.  Amy Schwabenlender, Valley of the Sun United 
Way, recommended Project Homeless Connect for focus groups and as a way to expand 
beyond individuals who need shelter, but are not in a shelter.  The summer schedule for 
Project Homeless Connect is North Phoenix in June, Tempe in July, and Chase Field in 
August.  Ms. Newsome and Ms. Skotnicki also volunteered to assist with focus groups for 
the study.  Ms. St. Peter thanked UMOM, Save the Family and Project Homeless Connect for 
volunteering.  Ms. Cordova commented on the use of bicycles as a means of transportation 
for clients in their permanent supportive housing program.   Ms. St. Peter mentioned that 
there was a program through the County several years ago that restored and reused bikes that 
were left or forgotten on city busses and no longer claimed.  The program was called the 
Purple Bike Program.    
 
Ms. St. Peter asked for input on the best way to gather data for the study, whether through 
focus groups, interviews or surveys.  Ms. Skotnicki said focus groups tend to work best for 
Save the Family particularly if they tie in to their monthly meetings with clients.  Ms. 
Skotnicki asked if the project information will be distributed to the Domestic Violence 
Committee members not in attendance for today’s meeting.  Ms. St. Peter confirmed 
information will be distributed to DV Council members.   She summarized elements for the 
project to include emergency shelter and transitional housing programs; families and 
individuals; and focus group volunteers include UMOM, Save the Family and Project 
Homeless Connect.  Chair Ellis asked for a motion to approve the elements for the Homeless 
and Domestic Violence Transportation Project as discussed.  Ms. Robbins motioned to 
approve the elements for the project.  Mr. Ludwig seconded the motion. The motion passed.  
 

7. AZ Statewide Homeless Veterans’ Summit 
Chair Ellis invited Brad Bridwell, Arizona Department of Veteran’s Services, to present on 
the Statewide Homeless Veteran’s Summit.  Mr. Bridwell provided a brief history of the 
Federal Veteran’s Administration noting oversight of regional offices, hospitals, benefits, and 
community based outreach clinics.  The State Department of Veterans’ Services is similar to 
the Federal Veterans’ Administration is and is located in 56 states. He said the Federal VA is 
responsible for creating the entitlement benefit while the State department delivers benefits 
as provided by State and federal Law. 
 
In November 2009, General Eric K. Shinseki, Secretary of Federal Veterans’ Affairs, held a 
summit bringing together providers from across the nation to create a plan to end the cycle of 
homelessness among veterans.  Mr. Bridwell said the Arizona Department of Veterans’ 
Services recognized the need to create local input into the plan to bridge local to federal 
efforts and in 2009, launched the first Homeless Veterans’ Services division.  He said in his 
years of experience working with Veterans’ services and homeless issues, he has not seen 
this type of political alignment occur. The Arizona Department of Veterans’ Services is one 
of only two State departments that include homeless veterans’ in their core mission.  
Additionally, only 14 out of 56 State departments are members of the National Coalition for 
Homeless Veterans.  
 
Mr. Bridwell said the Arizona Department of Veterans’ Services is leading the way. 
Theyhope to quickly create a best practice model to ensure plans include local input. This 



will provide direction on how best to direct what will be a monumental amount of resources 
that will become available through the federal government.  Mr. Bridwell provided 
information on the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) / Veterans’ 
Administration Supported Housing (VASH) program which has been in operation for two 
years.  Through the program, Arizona has received approximately 430 VASH vouchers.  
With another $10,000 expected to be put into the program, Arizona expects to receive an 
additional 200 vouchers.   
 
Mr. Bridwell said the second portion of the program increases resources targeting homeless 
veterans.   The current allocation of $3.2 billion has been budgeted for an increase to $4.2 
billion.  Mr. Bridwell said this is a huge amount of resources that calls for communities to 
come together.  As such, the Arizona Department of Veterans’ Services formed the first 
Statewide Homeless Veterans’ Summit to which 50 individuals from 35 agencies throughout 
the state came together to begin forming a plan to bridge resources.  During this process, a 
competitive grant cycle was announced for which applications are due March 31, 2010.   Mr. 
Bridwell said he is pleased with the amount of community support received through the VA 
Grant Funds Services for Homeless Veterans.  He said in the short amount of time since the 
release of the grant cycle, eight applications from across the state have been submitted.   He 
said in this grant per diem process, capturing a small percentage of funds will be a huge win.  
He acknowledged the agency partners working on getting grant applications submitted. 
 
Mr. Bridwell said with the assistance of Bob Duvall, CI&R, HMIS data identified 70 veteran 
families in the existing homeless services network.  The VA served 35 families in 2009.  
Based on those numbers, he said it is reasonable to believe that more than half of the veteran 
families identified did not receive VA services.  He said that is the bridge, working with 
community partners, the Arizona Department of Veterans’ Services hopes to create to 
effectively end homelessness among veterans and among communities and ensure no more 
veteran families are overlooked.   Chair Ellis thanked Mr. Bridwell for his presentation.  
  

8. Update on Progress of Valley of the Sun United Way Permanent Supportive Housing 
Initiative 
Chair Ellis introduced Mike McQuaid, Human Services Campus, to update the Committee on 
progress of the Valley of the Sun United Way Permanent Supportive Housing Initiative.  Mr. 
McQuaid thanked the Committee for an opportunity to report on activities of the Homeless 
Advisory Board.  He said the Board was formed in late 2009 for the purpose of addressing 
chronic homelessness and permanent supportive housing.  Mr. McQuaid serves as Chair of 
the Board and Doug Parker, U.S. Airways, is Co-Chair.   
 
Mr. McQuaid said a large contingency visited Salt Lake City recently to learn more of their 
projects for chronically homeless individuals.  The first meeting was held in January and was 
composed of diverse groups of individuals from the community.  A second meeting has been 
scheduled for April.  He said collaboration and working together is the essence of what the 
group does and he is reminded of similar efforts when developing the Human Services 
Campus. Mr. McQuaid said permanent supportive housing must be created if the group is 
going to make a difference.  As such, two committees have been formed.  The 
Implementation Committee will be responsible for looking at specific projects and 



identifying and moving the project from concept to reality.  The Policy Committee will focus 
on how activities are represented and embraced in the community.  While the immediate 
concern is chronic homelessness, Mr. McQuaid said he is hopeful this will be the start of 
something that would continue well beyond dealing with the chronically homeless.  
 
He reported in Salt Lake City, chronically homeless individuals represent a relatively small 
percentage of population but consume a significant amount of services.  Preliminary numbers 
at Central Arizona Shelter Services and the Human Services Campus are very similar with 
10-15 percent consuming more than two-thirds of services.  He said people who have been at 
the campus for a very long time are cycling back through the system. This is very costly 
compared to providing permanent supportive housing.  Mr. McQuaid said the project makes 
sense from a business standpoint; the immediate goal is to achieve 250 units by 2012 and 
1000 units by 2016.  
  
Mr. McQuaid introduced Tom Manos, Maricopa County Industrial Development Authority, 
to further discuss current projects.  Mr. Manos shared a story wherein the contingency asked 
representatives from Salt Lake City to what they credited their success.  Their response was 
to have a spark plug in the community.  He said the contingency all recognized Mr. McQuaid 
as that spark plug.   
 
Mr. Manos said the long term goal of the project is to achieve 1000 units by 2016; the short 
term goal is 250 units by 2012.  While very ambitious, Mr. Manos said he is confident the 
goal will be achieved.  He provided an overview of the following projects:   
 
• The City of Tempe permanent supportive housing pilot project will create 35 scattered-

site housing units.  He said this is an important example of a project that addresses a 
regional solution.  He acknowledged Chair Ellis for her leadership in these efforts.   
 

• The City of Phoenix’s Request for Proposals (RFP) for a Housing First Model was 
awarded to NRP Group and Native American Connections for 54 units.  Receiving a tax 
credit will be a key component in making the numbers work for this project.  The tax 
credit applications are currently being reviewed by the City of Phoenix.  
 

• Discussion is underway with Ted Williams, Arizona Behavioral Health Corporation, for 
50 units to house the most chronic homeless.  Mr. Manos said he is confident this project 
will be brought to conclusion.  

 
• Additionally, Mr. Manos reported working to complete a lease for 40 units at 8th Street 

and Willetta.  The facility in this project was previously used as a domestic violence 
shelter and is move-in ready.    

 
• Mr. Manos acknowledged Mr. Bridwell for his assistance in securing a facility at the 

Good Samaritan Campus noting two-thirds of the funding for this project has been 
identified.  

 



Mr. McQuaid said this is a regional issue and he is hopeful that different parts of the county 
can assist in achieving the goal.  He said the project in Tempe is a huge step in the right 
direction and of the goal for 1000 units, 25 percent are targeted for U.S. Veterans.  Mr. 
McQuaid said completion of the initial goals will free up services and activities at the Human 
Services Campus that can then be directed toward shorter term solutions.  
  
Ms. Newsome asked if the project includes units for chronically homeless women, noting 
there are 136 single women at the Watkins Shelter; many have been there for several years.  
She said she is hopeful the projects will target units for single women as well as single males.   
Mr. McQuaid said there will be a focus for women noting a higher percentage of female 
veterans.  Additionally, two to three other projects are under consideration.  Chair Ellis 
acknowledged Theresa James, City of Tempe, for working on the pilot housing project and 
Valley of the Sun United Way for providing an opportunity to showcase the project. 
 

9. Legislative Update 
Chair Ellis introduced Jacki Taylor, Arizona Coalition to End Homelessness, to provide a 
legislative update.  Ms. Taylor provided a brief overview.  She said a letter requesting an 
increase in funding for the McKinney-Vento line item has been circulating among Congress.  
The requested increase would bring funding to a level that can sustain changes created by the 
HEARTH Act.  In addition, the increase also affects the Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration (SAMHSA) line item.  Ms. Taylor noted Congressman Ed Pastor 
directly addressed the Committee on Appropriations to increase the McKinney-Vento line 
item and to that extent, Arizona has been positively impacted.   
 
In terms of budget cuts, Ms. Taylor said the homeless line item has gone unscathed so far, 
however, she asked everyone to be mindful of the continuing cuts being made to the 
domestic violence budget.  She encouraged everyone to take action in times of distress and 
make a conscious commitment to support Proposition 100, stating it provides hope for this 
fiscal year and years to come.  She said everyone should be concerned about the impact to 
human services if the measure is not passed.  Failure of the measure could result in an 
additional $50 million cut from the Department of Economic Security budget. 
 

10. 2010 Homeless Street Count Results 
Chair Ellis introduced Ms. Mead to present the results of the 2010 Homeless Street Count. 
Ms. Mead acknowledged all municipalities, nonprofits, volunteers, and faith based 
organizations for an outstanding show of participation in the Homeless Street Count.  She 
noted an increase in the number of volunteers from last year.  Ms. Mead said the 
collaborative effort identified 2,729 homeless individuals.   
 
Ms. Mead provided an overview of the results.  She said while 73 percent of people counted 
were adult males, the percentage of adult females and children are increasing.  When 
comparing different sub-populations, there was a six percent decrease overall in the region.  
However, the number of families increased by 27 percent and 30 percent for youth on their 
own.  Totals from 2005 through 2010 fluctuate from year to year.  Ms. Mead believes one 
caveat in 2008 and 2010 was the rainy weather.   
 



Information from the Arizona Department of Education notes a steady increase in the number 
of homeless children and youth in schools within Maricopa County.  Data for 2010 will not 
be available until the end of the school year.   Ms. Mead said the most current data for 2008 
and 2009 indicates more than 13,500 children registered in schools in Maricopa County.   
 
Ms. Mead thanked the Department of Economic Security for conducting the shelter count.  
She said last year 4,791 individuals were reported; this year’s results are not yet available.  
Ms. Mead said based on results from the 2010 Street Count and 2009 data for the shelter 
count and number of people doubled up, there are more than 17,000 homeless people in 
Maricopa County.  A breakdown among municipalities is provided in the handout.  
 
Mr. Bridwell said the Department of Education does not ask questions about Veteran status.  
He said this is a major example of a large population not being connected to services.  
  
Andy Hall, Department of Economic Security, advised results of the shelter count will be 
available by the next meeting.   He said a significant change for transitional or emergency 
housing is not expected.  However, a 10-12 percent increase is expected for permanent 
supportive housing.    
 

11. Committee Officer Appointments 
Chair Ellis said per the new MAG policy on officer appointments, MAG Committee officers 
may serve one-year terms.  At the end of the first year, officers may serve a second one-year 
term with consent of the Committee and appointment by the MAG Executive Committee.   
 
Chair Ellis said with the Committee’s consent, both she and Vice Chair Joanne Osborne 
would like to continue serving as Officers of the Committee.  The Committee will take action 
on Officer appointments at the May17, 2010 meeting.  Anyone interested in serving as an 
officer on the Continuum of Care Regional Committee on Homelessness is requested to 
submit a letter of interest by June 1, 2010.    
 

12. Request for Future Agenda Items 
Chair Ellis reviewed topics discussed during the meeting to be included in the May agenda.  
Topics include an update on the Homeless and Domestic Violence Transportation project, 
results of the shelter count, Chair and Vice Chair Officer appointments, and an update on 
Project Homeless Connect.   She asked for further input from the Committee.   
 
Mr. McQuaid requested the opportunity to provide a periodic update on Advisory Board 
activities and projects.  Mr. Bridwell offered to report on the results of Project H3.  Ms. 
Taylor was requested to provide a legislative update. 
 

13. Announcements 
Ms. Taylor gave a brief overview on Project H3 Home, Health Hope.  The project will 
identify the 50 most medically vulnerable people who are chronically homeless in the region.  
Survey week for the project will take place April 19-23, 2010.  Ms. Taylor encouraged 
participation in the project.  The process will pair outreach professionals with volunteers to 
conduct surveys Tuesday through Thursday, April 20-22 from 3:30 – 6:00 a.m.  Training will 



be held on Monday, April 19, 2010 and Community briefings will be given on Friday, April 
23, 2010.The location will be determined.  Ms. Taylor said VASH, City of Mesa, and 
Arizona Behavioral Health Corporation have committed housing units for the project.  
 
Vice Chair Osborne said the story of homelessness has captured an audience through avenues 
such as newspaper articles and media specifically in the West valley.  She stressed the need 
for the Committee to keep that momentum going by submitting letters to the editor, 
encouraging stakeholders to submit letters, and continuing to educate our communities.  Vice 
Chair Osborne said the West Valley has taken youth under their wing as a result of these 
types of communication efforts.  In May, the City of Goodyear will hold a “Movie in the 
Park” night.  All contributions from the event will go toward the support of homeless youth.   
 
Ms. Robbins said for the Department of Health Services, individuals covered under Title 
XIX will be provided with services; those not covered will not receive services other than for 
a crisis.  She said they are still working to determine the full implication of this funding cut.  
Ms. Robbins also discussed housing services for undocumented individuals and concerns 
regarding legal ramifications.  She said the legislature is not clear on the requirements of 
reporting undocumented individuals to the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(ICE).  She recommended a presentation with strong emphasis on immigration law be 
scheduled for a future Committee meeting.  Mr. Margiotta encouraged everyone to enroll 
Title XIX eligible individuals in the program as early as possible.  He said it has had a 
meaningful impact in past and will have a drastic impact in the future. 
 
Ms. Ochoa said with regard to media, she has the fortunate opportunity of working with 
Latino Perspectives magazine.  She said this would provide a good opportunity to submit an 
article with regard to homelessness.   The magazine reaches 25,000 subscribers and 100,000 
people per month through its electronic newsletter.  She welcomed anyone interested in 
assisting her with an article to contact her.  
 
Chair Ellis said when the results of the Homeless Street Count were released, KTAR 
requested an interview to discuss results and the decrease in numbers.  Chair Ellis said while 
a decrease in numbers is good news, it is still important to look at the individual categories 
and the need for continued funding.  While most categories are decreasing, the number of 
homeless families and youth are increasing.  She said it is important to keep that kind of 
perspective at the forefront of our communication efforts.  Chair Ellis expressed interest in 
working with Ms. Ochoa on an article for Latino Perspectives.  
 
Ms. Newsome said there is always an injustice to families in the Street Count because most 
are doubled up, resulting in inaccurate figures.  People looking at the results don’t get the full 
picture on the number of homeless families. She stressed the need to be mindful of this when 
addressing the press.  Ms. Robbins agreed noting a difference in the number of families 
reported by DHS compared to the Homeless Street Count.  
 
Ms. Taylor announced her departure as Executive Director for the Arizona Coalition to End 
Homelessness.  She said it has been a pleasure and an honor to work with the Coalition for 
the past four years and assured everyone that the Board of Directors is working on a smooth 



transition.   Ms. Skotnicki announced Ms. Taylor will fill the position of Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) for Save the Family.  
  

14. Adjourn  
The meeting adjourned 3:36 p.m.  The next regular meeting of the Continuum of Care 
Regional Committee on Homelessness scheduled for May 17, 2010 from 2:00 to 3:30 p.m. in 
the MAG Saguaro Room. 
 


	Margot Cordova for Diana Yazzie Devine, Native American Connections
	OTHERS PRESENT

